




Planning and Zoning Commission  

Meeting Minutes 

 

Bastrop Planning & Zoning Minutes March 29, 2018 Page 1 of 2 

 

 
 
 
The City of Bastrop Planning and Zoning Commission met Thursday, March 29, 2018 at 6:00 p.m. 
in the Bastrop City Council Chambers, 1311 Chestnut Street, Bastrop, Texas.  
 
1. CALL TO ORDER  
  
Debbie Moore called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.   
 
Debbie Moore    Present 
Patrick Connell   Present 
Dianna Rose     Present 
Cynthia Meyer    Present 
Alyssa Halle-Schramm Absent 
Matthew Lassen   Present  
Sue Ann Fruge   Absent 
Richard Gartman   Present 
Cheryl Lee    Present  
 
2. CITIZEN COMMENTS   
 
There were no citizen comments. 

3. ITEMS FOR INDIVIDUAL CONSIDERATION   
 
3A. Consider action to approve meeting minutes from the February 22, 2018 Planning & 

Zoning Commission Regular Meeting and the March 6, 2018 Special Meeting. 
 
Patrick Connell made a motion to approve the meeting minutes from the February 22, 2018 
Planning & Zoning Commission Regular Meeting and the March 6, 2018 Special Meeting. Cheryl 
Lee seconded the motion and the motion carried unanimously.  

3B. Public Hearing and consider action to recommend approval of amendments to Chapter 
14 of the Bastrop Code of Ordinances, Article 14.03 - “Historic Landmark Preservation” 

to City Council. 

Jennifer Bills presented to the Commission the proposed changes in the Historic Landmark 
Preservation Ordinance.  

The Commission asked the following questions and made comments on the proposed ordinance 
update:  

Do houses destroyed by an Act of God have to be rebuilt with historic standards?  
o No. Infill and rebuilding standards will be in the future Design Standards. They cover 

general compatibility (size, height, setbacks) with the area not strict building design.  
 



Planning and Zoning Commission  

Meeting Minutes 

 

Bastrop Planning & Zoning Minutes March 29, 2018 Page 2 of 2 

 

Do window replacements need Certificates of Appropriateness?  
o Not if they are replaced with the same style of window.  

 
The incentive should be greater.  

o The refund is more of an acknowledgement of the property and funds to maintain the 
historic nature.  

 
Patrick Connell made a motion to recommend approval of amendments to Chapter 14 of the 
Bastrop Code of Ordinances, Article 14.03 - “Historic Landmark Preservation” to City Council. 
Richard Gartman seconded the motion and the motion carried unanimously.  

 
4. WORKSHOP 

4A. Discussion and update on the Draft Subdivision Ordinance 

The Commission adjourned from their Regular Session and convened into the Workshop Session. 

Dave Gattis updated the Commission on the status of the Draft Subdivision Ordinance.  

Discussion commenced between Staff and the Commission regarding the content of the proposed 
Subdivision Ordinance and asked a definition to be included for “legal lots”.  

4B.  Discussion on the Draft Mobile Food Vendor Ordinance.  
 

Jennifer Bills presented to the Commission the language for the Draft Mobile Food Vendor 
Ordinance. 

The Commission worked with Staff on edits for the proposed language in the Mobile Food Vendor 
Ordinance.  

The asked Staff further analyze the electrical standards for the ordinance, paved surface 
requirements and see if alternative materials would be acceptable, the plumbing standards for 
the ordinance, and the implication of alcohol being served at mobile food vendor sites. 

The Commission adjourned from their Workshop Session and reconvened into their Regular 
Session.  

5. ADJOURNMENT 

Patrick Connell made a motion to adjourn at 7:25 pm. Cynthia Meyer seconded the motion, and 
the motion carried unanimously.  

_______________________ 
Debbie Moore, Chair 
 
_______________________ 
Patrick Connell, Vice Chair 



Page 1 of 5 
 

PLANNING & ZONING 
STAFF REPORT 

 
MEETING DATE:  April 26, 2018      ITEM:  3B  
 
TITLE:  
Public hearing and consider action to recommend approval of a Conditional Use Permit to allow 
a 120-foot water standpipe to exceed the 35-foot maximum height allowance at 113 Tahitian 
Drive, Lot A of Tahitian Village, Unit 1, an area zoned C-2, Commercial-2 and forward to the next 
City Council meeting. 
 
STAFF REPRESENTATIVE:  
Jennifer C. Bills, AICP, LEED AP, Assistant Planning Director 
 
ITEM DETAILS: 
Site Address:  113 Tahitian Drive (Attachment 1) 
Total Acreage:  0.837 acres 
Legal Description: Lot A of Tahitian Village, Unit 1 
 
Property Owner: Bastrop County Water Control and Improvement District #2 
Agent Contact: Jim Ouellet, P.E. 
 
Existing Use:  Bastrop County WCID #2 Water well, tanks, and pump station  
Existing Zoning: C-2, Commercial 2 
Future Land Use: Transitional Residential 
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY:  
Bastrop County Water Control and Improvement District #2 is requesting a Conditional Use Permit 
to construct a new water standpipe at their existing facility located at 113 Tahitian Drive. The site 
is the WCID #2’s Water Plant No. 1, which contains an existing water well, pump station, and 
ground storage tanks (Attachment 2). 
 

 
 
 

Attachment 3:  Proposed 
Tower Location 



Page 2 of 5 
 

The new 500,000-gallon standpipe will be 120 feet in height with a 
diameter of 40 feet. The standpipe is needed to add additional 
capacity and pressure to the water system and provide better service 
for the water customers in the Bastrop County WCID #2 area. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The site is zoned Commercial-2.  The approximate location of the standpipe is on the north side 
of the property and will be setback a minimum of 10 feet from the north property line.   
  

 
 
 

Attachment 4:  Example of 
a standpipe 

Proposed Standpipe Location 
and Surrounding Area 



Page 3 of 5 
 

 
 
 
 
The Commercial-2 district has a maximum height of 35 feet. Chapter 14 of the Code of Ordinances 
allows heights over 35 feet with a Conditional Use Permit. 
 
POLICY EXPLANATION: 
The purpose of conditional uses is to allow certain uses in districts that under most circumstances 
would not be compatible with other permitted uses, but may be compatible if certain conditions 
and development restrictions are met. A Conditional Use Permit (CUP) is adopted by Ordinance, 
similar to a standard zoning request, with public hearings at Planning & Zoning Commission and 
City Council meetings, as well as two ordinance readings at separate City Council meetings.   
 
Per Section 33.2 Conditional Use Permit Regulations, the Planning and Zoning Commission 
and City Council may consider the following for approval of a requested CUP: 

1. The use is harmonious and compatible with surrounding existing uses or proposed 
uses; 

 
The existing lot is already in use as a water well and storage location.  
Standpipes and water towers are necessary elements of a water system to 
serve development and are usually placed near existing development.  
 

2. The activities requested by the applicant are normally associated with the permitted 
uses in the base district; 

 
Water standpipe/Elevated Water Storage is a permitted use of the 
Commercial-2 district. 
 

3. The nature of the use is reasonable; 
 

Standpipes are a reasonable and necessary use to provide adequate water 
availability. 
 

4. Any negative impact on the surrounding area has been mitigated; 
5.  

The existing 150-foot Sanitary Control Easement for the existing well will remain 
and will not be increased.  No negative impacts of the standpipe are anticipated. 
 

6. That any additional conditions specified ensure that the intent of the district purposes 
are being upheld. 
 

Additional criteria are detailed below. 
 
Chapter 14, Section 43.4 Special Height Regulations includes several conditions that apply to the 
proposed water standpipe. 
 
43.4 - SPECIAL HEIGHT REGULATIONS:  

B.  Increasing Maximum Height. The maximum height of buildings and structures may be 
increased above the maximum height allowed in the base zoning district by conditional use 
permit, as provided in Section 33, Conditional Use Permits, for those buildings and 
structures located in nonresidential districts, and those buildings and facilities occupied by a 
church, political subdivision, or utility company in any zoning district.  



Page 4 of 5 
 

1.  In addition to the conditional use standards, the Planning and Zoning Commission and 
City Council shall consider, but not be limited to, the following factors when determining 
the maximum height:  
a.  Preservation of views of landmark buildings, significant open spaces, vistas or water 

bodies.  
b.  Access to light and air of surrounding properties.  
c.  Shadowing of residential properties or significant public spaces.  
d.  Height, bulk and scale relationships with surrounding uses and structures.  

i.  Type and amount of separation between surrounding uses and structures (e.g. 
separation by only a property line, by an alley or street, or by other physical 
features such as grade changes).  

ii.  Use of architectural style, details (such as roof lines or fenestration), color or 
materials that derive from the less intensive surrounding uses and structures.  

iii.  Creative use of landscaping or other screening. 
iv.  Location of features on-site to facilitate transition, such as locating open space 

on the property edge so the building or structure is farther from lower intensity 
development.  

v.  Articulation of the building's facades vertically or horizontally in intervals that 
conform to existing structures or platting pattern.  

vi.  Reducing the bulk of the building's upper floors.  
vii.  Limiting the length of, or otherwise modifying, facades.  

e. Treating topographic conditions in ways that minimize impacts on neighboring 
development, such as by using a rockery rather than a retaining wall to give a more 
human scale to a project, or stepping a project down a hillside.  

f.  Relationship of windows, doors, exterior stairways, exterior balconies, sundecks, 
etc. with the privacy of neighbors.  

2.  Fire related standards:  
a.  Fire flow is adequate.  
b.  Buildings or structures over two (2) stories in height shall be in compliance with four 

(4) story fire code requirements for commercial fire suppression systems.  
The existing site is already used for water pumping and storage.  The standpipe will be a 
passive use and the main impact to the surrounding is visual.  The height is such that 
additional landscaping and screening will not provide any effective visual improvement and 
there is no change to the architectural structure that will make any improvement; however, 
paint/material color of the standpipe can be considered. At street level, existing trees and 
shrubs help screen the site from pedestrians and vehicles. The standpipe will be separated 
from the northern property by at least 10 feet to the property line as well as parking lot on the 
other side of the property line. Shadowing and blocked access to light and air will be minimal 
due to the narrowness of the tower compared to a building, as well as the fact that WCID #2 
owns most of the surrounding site. The tower’s location has minimal impact on Tahitian 
Village vistas across valleys and ravines. 

The standpipe does not require any commercial fire suppression system. 

 
PUBLIC COMMENTS:  
Eleven adjacent property owner notifications were mailed on April 6, 2018. At the time of this 
report, one responses with no objection, as long as the increase in height does not increase the 



Page 5 of 5 
 

non-build radius around the well.  There is a 150-foot Sanitary Control Easement around the 
existing well and that easement will not be changed (Attachment 5). 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Hold a public hearing and consider action to recommend approval of a Conditional Use Permit to 
allow a 120-foot water standpipe to exceed the 35-foot maximum height allowance at 113 Tahitian 
Drive, Lot A of Tahitian Village, Unit 1, an area zoned C-2, Commercial-2 and forward to the next 
City Council meeting. 
 

1. Construction shall be in conformance with the City of Bastrop regulations. 
2. All necessary permits for the proposed development shall be acquired prior to occupying 

the building. 
3. A Building Permit shall be applied for and secured within one year from the date the 

Conditional Use Permit is granted (second reading of the ordinance). 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Attachment 1:  Property Location Map 
Attachment 2:  Letter from Applicant 
Attachment 3:  Proposed Standpipe Location 
Attachment 4:  Example of a Standpipe 
Attachment 5:  Surrounding Property Owners’ Responses 



SH 71
TA

HIT
IAN

PA
RK

INDUSTRY

SH 71 TO LOOP 150 EAST
LOOP 150 EAST

CO
NF

ER
EN

CE

CORPORATE

SH 71

R81125

R59642

R78174

R23384

R105103

R33330

R77684

R33178

R33146

R33402

R23213

R33194

R33202R33210

R59607

R32913

R33418

R33378
R33386

R33410

R49246

R32895

R32697

Location Map
Conditional Use Permit

113 Tahitian Drive
BCWCID#2 Water Standpipe ³Date: 4/4/2018

The accuracy and precision of this cartographic
data is limited and should be used for information
/planning purposes only.  This data does not 
replace surveys conducted by registered Texas
land surveyors nor does it constitute an "official"
verification of zoning, land use classification, or
 other classification set forth in local, state, or
federal regulatory processes. The City of Bastrop,
nor any of its employees, do not make any warranty
of merchantability and fitness for particular purpose,
 or assumes any legal liablity or responsibility for the 
accuracy, completeness or usefullness of any such
information, nor does it represent that its use would
not infringe upon privately owned rights.     

1A

TA
HI

TI
AN

KANI
OL

AA

MAUNA LOA

ALOHA

KO
NA

INDUSTRY

IN
DU

ST
RI

AL

PA
RK

MAUNA KEA

PAHALA

PUNA

HOMONU

BR
IA

R 
FO

RE
ST

CO
MM

ER
CI

AL

CONFERENCE

CORPORATE

MA
JE

ST
IC

 PI
NE

KEOKEA

KULA

PINE POINT

¬«71

0 75 15037.5 Feet



a 

l.41 

♦ 

E F C 0 

BEFCO ENGINEERING, INC. 
Consulting Engineering/Land SuNeying 

P.O. BOX 615 485 NORTH JEFFERSON 

LA GRANGE, TEXAS 78945-0615 

979 I 968-6474 FAX 979 / 968-3056 

www.befcoengineering.com E-mail: office@befcoengineerinq.com 
Texas Registered Engineering Firm F-2011 Texas Licensed Surveying Firm #10001700 

March 23, 2018 

City of Bastrop 

Planning & Development Department 
Mr. David Gattis, Interim Planning Director 
1311 Chestnut Street 
Bastrop, Texas 78602 

RE: Project Description Letter 
Conditional Use Permit 
Water Standpipe at Water Plant No. 1 
BCWCID#2 

Mr. Gattis: 

Bastrop County Water Control and Improvement District #2 (BCWCID #2) is the provider of 
water service for most of Tahitian Village located just east\southeast of the City of Bastrop. 
BCWCID #2 currently owns and operates an existing water plant (Water Plant No. 1) on 
approximately 0.83 acres at 113 Tahitian Drive. The existing plant site has existing ground 
storage tanks, pump station and hydropneumatic tanks. BCWCID #2 proposes to install a 
new approximate 500;000 gallon water standpipe to better serve its customer base. 

The existing site is zoned Commercial - 2 (C-2) per the City of Bastrop zoning map. The C-
2 zoning only allows for heights up to 35 feet. Per section 43.4 B., a conditional use permit 
can be applied for to allow for greater heights for improvements. proposed by a utility 
company. The proposed water standpipe is a proposed bolted steel tank with an approximate 
eave height of 116 feet and total height of approximately 120 feet. Our proposed height is in 
excess of 35 feet and requires a conditional use permit approval. 

Following are additional items of consideration for this request: 

1. The water standpipe will be similar in size and scope as many other elevated style
water tanks owned and operated by the City of Bastrop and Aqua Water Supply
Corporation.

2. All adjacent land uses are non residential and/or zoned non residential and will not
have a negative impact on light, air or shadowing of adjacent properties.

3. Reference the attached picture for the style of standpipe tank proposed.

4. The tank is being located on an existing water plant site and is an appropriate location
for the intended use. The tank site was selected due to the fact that it is at the highest

11 s:\_projects\bcwcid2\18-7082 water tal)/< cup\cup application\cup summary letter.doc 
11 

'Pro/cienl, praclicaf engineering and fand !iiiri,er;ing I�Jice!J with a !Jen!Je o/ !imaff-town vaiie!J and care . 

jbills
Typewritten Text
Attachment 2





jbills
Typewritten Text
Attachment 3 



jbills
Typewritten Text
Attachment 4



jbills
Typewritten Text
Attachment 5



Page 1 of 3 
 

PLANNING & ZONING 
STAFF REPORT 

 
MEETING DATE:  April 26, 2018      ITEM:  4C  
 
TITLE:  
Discussion on future policy to allow existing site billboards to convert to digital. 
 
STAFF REPRESENTATIVE:  
Jennifer C. Bills, AICP, LEED AP, Assistant Planning Director 
 
ITEM DETAILS: 
Staff is seeking feedback on the issue of allowing existing commercial billboards along the 
highways to convert to digital faces. 
 
Chapter 3 of the Code of Ordinances regulates signs within the city limits and the Statutory One-
Mile Extra-Territorial Jurisdiction.   
 
Per Section 36.20.009 – Prohibited signs and activities: 
 

(2) No new billboards shall be permitted by the city. No other off-premises signs, 
including advertising benches, shall be permitted, except as specifically authorized in 
this article; 
 

Since billboards are not allowed, the existing billboards are considered “legal non-conforming 
signs.”  As such, they are allowed to remain and continue use as long as the structure is 
maintained and the sign type and structure is not altered. 
 
Billboards are off-site advertising signs that are typically owned by companies such as Lamar 
Adverting Company, Reagan Outdoor Adverting, Sign Ad Outdoor and several others within the 
Bastrop area.   
 
The Texas Administrative Code, Title 43, Part 1, Chapter 21, Subchapter I, Division 1 provides 
regulations of signs along Interstate and Primary Highways. This includes regulation of the 
maximum sign face area. Typical sign faces in Bastrop are 14 feet tall by 48 feet wide. 
 
Staff has been approached with a proposal to remove multiple existing static billboards within the 
regulatory area to be replaced by an electronic sign face (on an existing structure) which changes 
the advertisement multiple times a day (Examples below). 
 
Issues that staff is concerned about include how a digital billboard will comply with the Outdoor 
Lighting Standards (dark sky) and frequency of ad changes as a distraction to drivers. 
 
Staff is looking for feedback and thoughts on this idea of electronic billboards. 
  

http://texreg.sos.state.tx.us/public/readtac$ext.ViewTAC?tac_view=5&ti=43&pt=1&ch=21&sch=I&div=1&rl=Y


Page 2 of 3 
 

Existing Static Billboard (day) 
 

 
Existing Static Billboard (night) 

 
 
 
 

  



Page 3 of 3 
 

Example of digital billboard (day) 
 

 
 

Example of digital billboard (night) 
 

 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Attachment 1:  Property Location Map 
Attachment 2:  Letter from Applicant 
Attachment 3:  Proposed Standpipe Location 
Attachment 4:  Example of a Standpipe 
Attachment 5:  Surrounding Property Owners’ Responses 


	Planning April 26 2018 - Signed Agenda
	Plannin April 26 2018 PZ Packet
	CUP BCWCID 2 Water Standpipe P&Z Staff Report
	Attachment 1 - 113 Tahitian Dr-WCID #2 Water Standpipe CUP
	Attachment 2 - Letter from Applicant
	Attachment 3 - Proposed Standpipe Location
	Attachment 4 - Example of Standpipe
	Attachment 5 - Surrounding Property Owners' Responses




